
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION 8, MONT ANA OFFICE 

Ref: 8MO 

CERTIFIED MAIL 

FEDERAL BUILDING, 10 W.l51
h STREET, SUITE 3200 

HELENA, MONTANA 59626 

MAR- 8 2013 

RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Anna Whiting Sorrell 
Director IHS Billings 
P.O. Box 3600 
Billings, MT 59107 

Dear Ms. Sorrell: 

Re: Administrative Order 
Docket No. SDWA-08-2013-0013 
Blackfeet Community Hospital 
Public Water System 
PWS ID #083090092 

• 

Enclosed is an Administrative Order (Order) issued by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
under the authority of section 1414 of the Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. § 300g-3. Among other 
things, the Order alleges that the Indian Health Services (Respondent), as owner and/or operator of the 
Blackfeet Community Hospital Public Water System (System) has violated the National Primary 
Drinking Water Regulations (drinking water regulations). 

The Order is effective upon the date received. Please review the Order and within 10 days provide the 
EPA with any information you believe the EPA may not have (e.g., any monitoring that may have been 
done but not submitted or pertinent system information, etc.). lf the Indian Health Services (IHS) 
complies with the Order, the EPA may close the Order without further action. Failure to comply with the 
Order may lead to substantial civil penalties. 

The Order requires IHS to notify the public of having violated the drinking water regulations. Enclosed 
please find a public notice template explaining the public notice requirements. Also enclosed is a 
detailed map of the System's distribution system. 

If you would like additional information, please feel free to contact me directly at (800) 457-2690, 
extension 5025, or (406) 457-5025. If your staff has technical questions, they may contact Sienna 
Meredith at (800) 457-2690, extension 5026, or (406) 457-5026. If you are represented by an attorney or 



have legal questions, please contact Amy Swanson, Enforcement Attorney, at (800) 227-8917, extension 
6906, or at (303) 312-6906. ' 

I urge your prompt attention to this matter. 

Sincerely, 

EPA Region 8 Montana Office 

Enclosures: 

cc: 

Public Notice Template 
Distribution System Map 

Tina Artemis, EPA 8 Regional Hearing Clerk 
Gerald Wagner, Director, Blackfeet Utility Commission, email 
Jeff Severn, Safety Officer, Blackfeet Community Hospital, email 
Merlin Gilham, CEO, Blackfeet Community Hospital 
Pete Conway, Director Billings Area Indian Health Service 
The Honorable Willie A. Sharp, Chairman Blackfeet Tribal Business Council 
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IN THE MA ITER OF: 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, 
Indian Health Services, 
Blackfeet Community Hospital Public Water System, 
Glacier County, Montana, 

Respondent. 
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ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER 

1. This Administrative Order (Order) is issued under the authority vested in the Administrator of 
the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) by the Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. 
§ 300f et seq. (Act), as properly delegated to the undersigned officials. 

2. The Indian Health Services (Respondent) is a Federal agency and therefore a "person" within the 
meaning of 40 C.F.R. § 141.2. 

3. The Respondent owns and/or operates the Blackfeet Community Hospital Public Water System 
(System) which provides piped water for human consumption to the public in Glacier County, Montana, 
within the exterior boundaries of the Blackfeet Indian Reservation, 

4. The System is supplied primarily by a ground water source consisting of 5 wells (3 of which are 
actively used). The water is treated with a pressure sand filter before entering the distribution system. 
The System's back-up source is purchased treated surface water from the Town of Browning. 

5. The System has 1 service connection and/or regularly serves at least 295 individuals daily at 
least 6 months out of the year. Therefore, the System is a "public water system" as defined in 
section 1401(4) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 300f (4), and 40 C.F.R. § 141.2. The System is also a "non­
transient, non community" water system as defined in 40 C.F.R. § 141.2. Respondent is subject to the 
Act and the National Primary Drinking Water Regulations (drinking water regulations) at 40 C.F.R. part 
141. The drinking water regulations are "applicable requirements" as defined in section 1414(i) of the 
Act, 42 U.S.C. § 300g-3(i). 

7. Respondent is subject to and required to comply with all substantive and procedural Federal 
requirements respecting public water systems in the same manner and to the same extent as any person 
is .subject to such requirements including, but not limited to, administrative orders and all civil and 
administrative penalties and fines. 42 U.S.C. § 300j-6(a). 

8. The drinking water regulations include monitoring requirements. EPA has sent notifications to 
the Respondent for specific monitoring requirements that apply to the System. 
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VIOLATIONS 

9. If two or more samples collected in any month from the System's water are positive for total 
coliform, then the System has not complied with the maximum contaminant level (MCL) for total 
coliform bacteria. 40 C.F.R. § 141.63(a)(2). During July and October 2012, two or more samples from 
the System were positive for total coliform and, therefore, Respondent violated this requirement. 

10. Respondent is required to report any coliform MCL violation to the EPA no later than the end of 
the next business day after learning of it. 40 C.F.R. § 141.21(g)(l). Respondent did not notify the EPA 
of the July or October 2012 MCL violations and, therefore, violated this requirement. 

11. Respondent is required to collect at least five routine samples during the next month the System 
provides water to the public if the System has one or more sampling results that are positive for total 
coliform. 40 C.F.R. § 141.21(b)(5). After the System's water tested positive for total coliform on 
October I, 2012, the Respondent failed to take at least five routine samples of the System's water in 
November 2012 and, therefore, violated this requirement. 

12. Respondent is required to notify the public of certain violations of the drinking water regulations. 
40 C.F.R. §§ 141.201-141.211. Respondent failed to notify the public of the violations cited in 
paragraph 9 and, therefore, violated this requirement. 

13. Respondent is required to report any failure to comply with any coliform monitoring requirement 
to the EPA within 10 days after discovering the violation. 40 C.F.R. § 141.21(g)(2). Respondent failed 
to report the violation listed in paragraph II above to the EPA, and, therefore, violated this requirement. 

14. Respondent is required to report any failure to comply with any other drinking water regulation 
to the EPA within 48 hours. 40 C.F.R. § 141.31(b). Respondent failed to report the violation listed in 
paragraph 12 above, to the EPA and, therefore, violated this requirement. 

ORDER 

Based on the above violations, Respondent is ordered to perform the following actions upon receipt of 
the Order: 

15. Respondent shall monitor the System's water monthly for total coliform bacteria and, if any 
sample is positive for total coliform, conduct repeat and additional routine monitoring as required by 40 
C.F.R. § 141.21. Respondent shall report analytical results to the EPA within the first 10 days following 
the month in which Respondent receives sample results, as required by 40 C.F.R. § 14l.31(a). 
Respondent shall report any violation of coliform monitoring requirements in 40 C.F.R. part 141 to the 
EPA within 10 days after discovering the violation, as required by 40 C.F.R. § 14l.21(g)(2). 

16. Within 30 days of receipt of this Order, Respondent shall provide EPA with a written compliance 
plan (Plan) on how the System will remain in compliance with these requirements (in paragraphs 15 
andl8). Among other things, the Plan should include: 

a. An update to the attached detailed Distribution System map to describe the following: 1) the 

@ ·Prlntfld on Recyclfld Paper 
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flow of water from each source (the primary source which is the 3 active groundwater wells 
and the secondary, backup source from Town of Browning), 2) the sources for each building or 
(or taps within the building if a building receives water from multiple sources), and 3) the 
location of all valves throughout the System which are used to tum on/off the water sources, 
and indicate sampling locations pursuant to the current total coliform sampling plan; 

b. A plan for how the Respondent will notify EPA, the circumstances requiring notification, and 
the adjustments to be made to the System when there is a need to switch between sources; and 

c. A plan and schedule to address the ongoing total coliform violations. This shall include plans 
to add full-time disinfection, to locate and abate the source of coliform contamination, to use a 
new source of safe water, or a combination of these changes. 

17. Within 30 days after receipt of this Order, Respondent shall notify the public of the violations 
cited in paragraph 9, above, following the instructions provided with the public notice templates 
accompanying this Order. Following any future violation of the drinking water regulations, Respondent 
shall comply with any applicable public notice provisions of 40 C.F.R. part 141, subpart Q. Within 10 
days after providing public notice, Respondent shall submit a copy of the notice to the EPA. The public 
notice for the failure to collect routine total coliform sample violations, cited in paragraph 11, is not yet 
ov·erdue. 

18. If Respondent's total coliform sample results exceed the MCL at any time, Respondent shall 
within 30 days of being notified of the MCL exceedance provide the EPA with a revised compliance 
plan and schedule for the System to come into consistent compliance with the MCL for total coliform as 
stated in 40 C.F.R. § 141.63(a). If the System's water does not comply with the total coliform MCLin 
40 C.F.R. § 141.63, Respondent shaH report this violation to the EPA by the end of the business day 
after discovering the violation, as required by 40 C.F.R. § 141.21(g)(l). 

19. Respondent shall report any violation of the drinking water regulations to EPA within 48 hours 
of the violation occurring as required by 40 C.F.R. § 14L3l(b). However, if a different time period for 
reporting is specified in this Order or the drinking water regulations, Respondent shall report within that 
different period. 

20. Respondent shall direct all reporting required by this Order to: 

Sienna Meredith (8MO) 
U.S. EPA Region 8, Montana Office 

Federal Building, 10 W. 15th Street, Suite 3200 
Helena, MT 59626 
Fax: (406) 457-

Email: Meredith.sienna@epa.gov 



bee: 
Kathleen Craig, 8ENF-PJ 
Amy Swanson, 8ENF-L 
Sarah Bahrman, 8P-W-DW 
Donna Roberts, 8P-W-DW 
Breann Bockstalher, 8P-W-DW 
Kimberly Pardue Welch, 8ENF-W 
Maureen Kiely, 8MO 
Reading File 

cc addresses: 

The Honorable Willie A. Sharp, Chairman 
Blackfeet Tribal Business Council 
P.O. Box 850 
Browning, MT 59417-0850 

Pete Conway 
Director IHS Billings 
2900 4lh Avenue North 
Billings, MT 59101 

Merlin Gilham, CEO 
Blackfeet Community Hospital 
P.O. Box 760 
Browning, MT 59417 



Blackfcc.t Community I lospital /\0 
Pugc4of4 

GENI'~RAL I)I~OVISIONS 

21. This Order docs not constitute u waiver, suspension, or modification of any requirement of the 
Act or drinking wutcr regulutions. Issuance of this Order is not an dcction by the EPA to forgo any civil 
or criminal action. 

22. Violatioll or any part of this Order or the drinking water regulations may subject Respondent to a 
civil penalty of up to $32.500 (as udjustcd t(w inllution) per day of.., iolution. 4:! U .S.C. ~JOOg-3; 40 
C.F.R. part 19. 

l!>sueu: ro.~t> . 2013. 

: /~ / -c·~y~ 
~ ~-/(_._.-

' . f?/""'":, / if~'/~ · 1 _ ·-···· 
.ldmcs H. Eppcnl, Sup!!rvisory Attorney 
'l.cgal Enl(>rcemcnt Program 
Oftice ofEnt'orccmcnt, Compliance 

and Environmental .Justice 

Julie ~- · ~ISog;io~irc~~? 
EPA Region 8 Montana Oflice 
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IMPORTANTINFORMATlON ABOUT YOUR DRINKING WATER 

Tests Show Coliform Bacteria in Blackfeet Community Hospital Water 

Our water system violated a Llrinking water stand;.u\1. Although this is not ;.Ill emergency. i.L'\ our customer.,. you 
have a right to know what happened, what you should do, and wh~lt a~.:tions we arc taking to com:ct this situation. 

We routinely monitor for the presence of drinking water contaminants. We took two samples for coliform bm:tcria 
eat:h month during July and O~,;tober 20 L2. All of those samples showed the pn.:scn~,;c of coliform bal.!lcriH. The 
stundard is that no more than two sample~ per month may ~,;ontain coliform. 

Whut should I do? 
• Ynu du not need to boil your water ur take other currcctive actiuns. HllWevcr. if yNt have .)pcdlk 

health conccms. consult yom doctor. 
• If you have a .~cvcrcly compromised immune .)y~tl.!m. ha\'c an infant . .-rc pregnant. or arc/can; for the 

elderly. you may be at increased risk and should seck advice from ynur health care provider' about 
drinking this water. General guidelines nn ways tolc.-,~cn the risk of infect ion by microbes arc available 
from EPA's Safe Drinking Water Hotline at HW0-42()-47l)l. 

Thl.! United States Environmental Protcl.!t.ion Agcm:y (I!PA) sl.!ts drinking water standards and has determined that 
the presence or total eoliforms is a possible health con~,;crn. Total coliform bacteria are g~;ncrally not harmful 
themselvc~. 

What does this mean? 
This 1s nut an emergency. !fit had been, you would hn\e been notilied within 24 hours. Total coliform bacteria 
arc gcncrully not. harmfulthem~clvcs but n sign th<lt there could be a problem with the treatment or di1>tribution 
sy~Lcm (pipes). Col((orms are bacteria which ore: na/ltml!y Jlrl'.l·enl in the em·ironment a11d are tll'ed as on 
indwator I hat other, pole ntially-ham!fitl, bacteria may be pr('l'l'llt. Co/ (forms ll'erefowrd in more smnplc1· than 
allowed and tlti.1· was (t 1raming of potell{ia/ probluns. 

Usually. coli forms arcH ~ig,n that there could be a probkm wllh the treatment or distribution sy.'>tem (pipe,). 
Whenever we detect coliform bacteria in any sample. we do follow-up testing to sec if other bactcrh1 of greater 
~,;on~,;crn, such as fecal coliform or£. coli, are present. We did not find any nf these bacteria in our suhse(JUent 
testing. If we had, we would have notified you immediately. 

We arc taking/have taken the following corrective action~: 

If you ha\c any 4liC..'>tions, plca~eeontact ______________ nt _______ or 
(Name of water sy~lcm contact) (Phone) 

(Mailing aduress or PWS contact) 

1'/c o.w .1/tcJrl' tills iii}Omtal/011 wit It all llw Oll1e1 pPop/e who dri11k thi1 'fl'cl/r' r. <'IJ11'c'illl (\ thO.\l' wl/111/lrt,\' not hem rere'iwd 11/i .\ 
1101ire direrlh (for example. peoplr itl aparl111t lll.\, nursing homes, .\chou/~. llllfllntJille.\.W\). You <'(Ill do llti.lby fJO.IIing filii 
1101ice in a public pia a or rli.wribt.lling cupil' ~ b.' lwnd or mail. 

PWS Opcrator/Rc~ponsibk Party: 

You mu~t provil.ic publk: notice to persons served a~ soon a~ practical but within JO days after you learn o[ the 



violution. 140 CPR 141.20 I (h) I You lllU!-.1 issue n repeat notice every three mnnth~ for n:-. long a:- the violution 
persists. 

Cmnmunity Systtlms must usc nne or the following mt!thuds 140 CPR 141 . 20~(c)l: 
hand or direct dclh cry 
mail.''''' :-.cparale notk:c or included with the bi ll 

Nun-Community Systems must UStl on~ or thtl fnlluwing mctlwds: 
posting in con,pi~.:ttou:. lnottion:-. 
lwnd delivery 
mail 

In additiun, both community anti non-community systems lliU\t u:-.c al/ntflcr methtxl rea-;onahly calculatellto reach 
other:- if they would nnt he rcad1cd hy the first method. Such mctho<J, ~.:ould inclullc new.,papcr:-.. e-mail. or 
tll.:li vcry ttl conumtnity nrganitatit~n s. If you mail. post. or hand deliver. you may plintthc notice on your sy:-.tcm ' :-. 
lctll.!rhcad. 

Corrective Action 
In your notice. de,cribc corrective o.~ct ion:. you arc t.lkinglhmc taken. Li!ooted bdow arc some :-.tcp~ commnnly taken 
hy water 11y:.tcm!. with total coliform ' iolations. Usc one or mnrc of the following action~. if apprnpri<ttc. or 
devdop your own: 

We arl.! chlorinating and flushing the water system. 
We arc incrcc~.,ing !'.lllllpling for coliform bacteria. 
We arc invc!.tignting the )\oun.e of contamination. 
We arc repairing the wellhead seal (or storage tnnk). 
We will inform you when additton<tl ~ample)\ show no coliforlll bi!Cicria. 

Plc&tsc mailthi:-. \tatcment of ccrtilication and a copy of the pti ntcd notice with your PWS ID# clearly wtillcn nn it. 
along with the date' the notil.:c wa~ po~tcd to: 

Sienna Meredith 
US I.!PI\ Region~ 

10 West 15'11 Street 
Suite 3200 
Helena, MT 59626 

Or you <.:an fax a <.:opy to: Attn: Sienna Mcrcuilh at 406·444-5055. lf you have questions ahout your total 
coliform violation cull Sienna Meredith at 1866-457-2690, or (406)457-5026. 

Certification of Public Notification 

___________ ...;._ __ c.ertify thJt the attached public notification was i 'i">Ucd 
( t>\\ \ OpcrntUI /I{~,P' 1\lh'c l'artyl 

from-------------- to-----------------
(l)"lc ) rnate l 

The nttm:hcd notil.:c wm. issued by-- ----------- --­
<Mcthnd u f deliv.:r)') 

Signature. _ ________________ _ Date ________ _ 


